
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SIXTH SESSION 
Oflici.ol Record. • 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 4 3rd MEE'l'ING 

Chairman: Mr. CALLE T CALLE (Peru) 

CONTENTS 

SIXTH COMMITTEE 
43rd meeting 

held on 
Mon~, 9 November 1981 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 121: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW COMMISSION ON THE WORK OF ITS 
THmTI-THIRD SESSION (continued) 

• This record IJ subject to correction. Correctlonl lbovld be aent vndtr the 
slcnature of a member of the deleptlon concerned 'llllltlllrt Orte -k of tlw tltlte of 
publication to the Chief of the Official Recorda Edltinl Section. room A·JSSO, 
866 United Nations Plua (Aicoa Buildlna), and lncorpontad in 1 COpY ol the 
record. 

corrections will be issued after the end of the aesslon, In 1 ~eparate fuclcle for 
each Committee. 

81-57863 

Dlstr. GENERAL 
A/C.6/36/SR.43 
23 November 1981 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

/ ... 



1\/C. G/36/SR.!+J 
English 
:.:':1:--:c 2 

The meeting was called to order at 11 a.m. 

AG~J:TIA ITHi 121: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAVJ COMMISSION ON THE HORK OF ITS 
':l:'lil"R.TY"·THIRD SESSION (continued) (A/36/10 and Corr.l (English and French only) 
o.n:i A/36/1~28) 

1. Nr. bAZILU (Romania) said that the contribution of the International Law 
Commission to the progressive development and codification of international law was 
remarkable. The Commission had adopted a realistic conception, accordine; to which 
international la~-r was the emanation of the will of States, and his delegation 
approved that position. 

2. The Romanian Government reserved the right to submit at a later date its final 
corunents on the draft articles on succession of States in respect of State archives 
and State debts, when the competent RowEnian authorities had completed consideration 
of them. 

'3. lie endorsed the principle set forth in article 3 and considered that the 
principles of international lavT mentioned in that article should be interpreted in 
the light of the Declaration on Principles of International Law concerning Friendly 
Relations and Co-operation among States in accordance with the Charter of the United 
nations. Many expressions in the draft articles and the commentaries thereon, such 
as ·'transfer of part of the territory of a State'', a separation of part or parts of 
the territory of a State;' and "dissolution of a State11 should be interpreted in the 
light of article 3. His delec;ation recalled that the principle of self­
determination of peoples, formulated in the Declaration on the Granting of 
Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples, should not be interpreted as 
authorizing or encouragine; any action likely to dismember a sovereign or independent 
State or to threaten in l/'hole or in part its territorial inter:;rity or its political 
unity. Furthermore, under that same principle, every State was obliged to abstain 
from any action vhich might damage the national unity and territorial integrity of 
another State. The principle of self-determination of peoples should be interpreted 
and implemented in close correlation with the other principles of international law. 
It •ms therefore necessary to exclude from the scope of the draft articles 
territorial changes such as annexation or territorial cession resulting from the 
use or threat of force or from interference in the internal or external affairs of 
other Sta·tes. The set of draft articles on succession of States should guarantee 
respect for State sovereignty and ensure the fulfilment in good faith of the 
obligations incumbent upon States in accordance 'rith the purposes and principles 
of the Charter of the United Nations. 

4. His delegation considered that those draft articles should be the subject of 
a ~onference of plenipotentiaries which would consider and adopt, in the form of a 
convention or other appropriate legal instrument, the rules proposed. by the 
Con1mission. 

5. l!ith regard to the draft articles on treaties concluded behreen States and 
international organizations or between tuo or more international organizations, his 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/36/SR .1-~ 3 
English 
Page 3 

(Hr. Hazilu, Ror~?£'-i~~J 

delegation supported the vie\v that the new rules should be the subject of an 
autonomous instrument separate from the Vienna Convention on the Lmr of Treaties. 
It considered that the ne-vr instrument might take the form of an international 
convention, provided that the Commission could formulate norms acceptable to the 
majority of States. 

6. Article 2, paragraph 1 (i), gave the expression 11 international organization11 

a definition identical to that contained in the Vienna Convention. His delegation 
believed that such an abstract and general definition 1-ras not adequate to determine 
the specific legal personality of international organizations. The definition 
proposed during the Commission 1 s work on the subject of the representation of States 
in their relations with international organizations would perhaps constitute a 
better point of departure. He considered also that the definition of the expression 
'
1rules of the Organization 11 -vras too broad. The expression "the established practice 
of the organization 11 vras vague and might give rise to great difficulties of 
interpretation. Moreover, since the 11relevant rules of the Organization 11 vrere 
frequently mentioned in the draft articles 0 that concept should be given in depth 
consideration. The competent Romanian authorities considered that, for the 
purposes of the draft articles, the "rules of the organization" should designate 
those which were established by the constituent instruments of the organization or 
by conventional or other instruments accepted by all its member States. 

1. The capacity of an international organization to conclude treaties was governed, 
according to article 6, by the 11relevant rules 11 of that organization. Ho-vrever, 
article 2 did not contain any definition of that expression. If that concept uas 
interpreted in the light of the definition of the rules of the organization contained 
in article 2, paragraph 1 (j), one reached a conclusion that lTas difficult to 
accept, namely 9 that the 11 relevant rules n mentioned in article G and in other of the 
draft articles might also be rooted in the 11established practice'' of the 
organization. His delegation considered that, in the absence of more precise 
elements in article 2, paragraph 1, (i), the capacity of the organization to 
conclude international treaties should be governed by its constituent instrument 
or conventional or other instruments accepted by all its member States, vhich 
established the powers of the organization in its specific area of activity. 

3. The provision proposed in article 9, paragraph 2, concerning the adoption of 
the text of a treaty was based on the corresponding provision of the Vienna 
Convention. Hmvever, uhen the text of a treaty was considered for purposes of 
adoption at an international conference, 1-rith the participation of international 
org~nizations, the application of the tvro--thirds majority rule might place a State 
in a paradoxical situation, because it would be participating in the conference 
nomine proprio, on the one hand, and as a State member of the organization on the 
other. Reconsideration of article 9, paragraph 2, was therefore necessary in 
order to ensure concordance between the position of the organization and that of 
it member States. 

9. Hith regard to article 20, paragraph 2, an initial question vhich arose vas 
hovr far that provJ.sJ.on took account of existing :nractice. Horeover, the hypothesis 
mentioned in the draft articles, namely, the case vrhere the participation of an 

I ... 



A/CJ)/36/SR. 43 
English 
P~'te;e l+ 

(Hr, l'Iazilu, Romania) 

international organization vras essential for the object and purpose of a treaty, 
might arouse serious controversies. His delegation pointed out further that 
situations of the type envisaged in that paragraph constituted exceptions which 
came under the particular rules of the treaties in question. 

10. Vlith regard to the formulation of reservations (arts. 19 to 23), he considered 
that the text of the relevant articles was too restricted. It tended to impose 
limitations on States in the exercise of their right to formulate reservations. 
That rie;ht was the very expression of State sovereignty. His delegation therefore 
considered that the vTOrds "the State may formulate a reservation" should be 
replaced by the vrords 11 a State has the right to formulate reservations 11 and that 
articles 20 to 23 should be amended accordingly. 

lOa. He considered that the iTOrding of the draft articles left room for improvementl 
the repetitions in articles 7 (paras. 1 and 3), 11, 12,13 and 14, which impaired 
the concision of the text, should be deleted. 

11. lvjr. QUENTIE-BAXTER (New Zealand) said that he \fished to focus on the question 
of State responsibility. Inasmuch as the five-year term of the members of the 
Comnlission vras about to expire, he vrould, instead of stating his Government vs 
position on particular points, make general observations regarding the nature of 
the Commission's vmrk, and thus contribute to the search for an agreement on 1-That 
direction that 1wrk should take in the future. Y.Thereas questions relating to 
treaties, and even those relating to succession of States, aDpertained to the era 
of the 1969 Vienna Convention, State responsibility had become, since the 1970s, 
the main concern of the Commission and a number of jurists: for them~ that question 
covered the \-Thole range of legal relations between sovereign States. The 
Commission had been reproached on the grounds that in recent years it had 
concentrated on the traditional aspects of international lavr and had not been 
responsive to the needs of the developing countries; only on the question of the 
non"navic;ational uses of international vratercourses had the critics been silent. 
l!hatever the merits of those reproaches, vrhich 1rere implicit criticisms of the 
importance accorded by tne Commission to State responsibility, it uould be useful 
to reviei·l, on a regular basis and in the light of the requirements of the day, 
the topics on the Commission's agenda. In that connexion, it vras difficult to make 
a clear distinction betueen traditional topics and nevr topics. Although the 
question of State responsibility i-TaS extremely old, the Commission had considered 
it, ui thin the past 10 years, in a nelf context. Similarly, the non~navigational 
uses of international vratercourses .·· a relatively old question - were givinr, rise 
to ne>r kinds of problems. · On the other hand, the question of liability for acts 
not prohibited by international lm.; iTaS very neu in that it approached from a 
different angle a iride range of practice among sovereign States. 

12. All members of the Sixth Committee who took an interest in the drafting of 
resolutions on the Commission kneiT that no topic remained on the Commission's 
agenda unless it enjoyed broad support uithin the Committee. Admittedly,.inasmuch 
as the Committee examined the iTOrk of the Commission every year, there ·Has 
Jierhaps not al'llays the right time--perspective for a revieil of the choices made 
11ith rec:ard to the agenda. Broadly SJ:>eaking, hm-rever, he did not think that 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Page 5 

(~r. Quentin~-Baxter, Ne1·r Zealand) 

during the 1970s the Commission had taken a traditionalist approach to State 
responsibility. It was unfair to claim that the Commission h~d confined itself to 
academic questions and was not sufficiently interested in the problems of the 
developing countries. 

13. The Commission 1 s 1962 decision to consider State responsibility w·ithin a 
broader frame-vmrk than before represented the greatest change of course in its 
history. The purpose had been to take into account the new interests of the 
majority of the State Members of the United Nations. The change was certainly not 
to everyone's satisfaction. The Commission's slow progress was a reflection of the 
complexity of the topics in question. The developed countries were somevhat 
frustrated on seeing the Commission move towards new topics to the detriment, in 
their opinion 0 of traditional topics. One of the real problems involved in the 
progressive development and codification of international law was that the greater 
the resources, expertise and documentation available to a State, the less need it 
saw for the codification of international practice and the more critical it was 
of codification work. Such 1vork required both caution and enthusiasm. Hith a 
modicum of enthusiasm, the problems encountered with respect to succession of States 
could be settled to everyone's satisfaction. The same was true of codification 
in the field of State responsibility. Some developed countries regretted that the 
origin of international responsibility, covered in part 1 of the draft articles, 
had been dealt with so briefly, whereas the developing countries considered that 
text to be a major step fonrard. It 1ras time for polemics to cease. The Special 
Rapporteur responsible for part 2 of the draft articles on States responsibility 
should be urged to make up for the abstract and concise nature of the first set 
of articles. 

14. Hi th regard to the important question of the non·-navigational uses of 
international -vratercourses, his delegation, like other delegations~ regretted that 
the Commission had not yet appointed a new Special Rapporteur. In that connexion, 
the very cogent ar~uments put fonrard by the representative of Ban~ladesh had 
reminded him how difficult the topic vas, particularly with respect to the concent 
of the river basin. The topic had not been easily accepted by the Commission. 

15. The goal of the Sixth Committee was to create a climate of trust 1vith a vieu 
to reconciling divergent points of vie1v and finding generally acce:r;table solutions. 
That 1-ras particularly true -vrith respect to such ne1r areas as mankind's activities 
in outer space and issues related to the transport of petroleum products or 
pollutants. As a result of the increasing complexity of the modern 1rorld, the 
~imp le exercise by a State of its sovereignty, l·ri thout any violation of the 
sovereignty of another State, affected, more and more frequently, the freedom of 
other States and the heritage of mankind. One of the objectives of the Sixth 
Committee was to consider the possibility of elaborating an "umbrellai 1 convention 
that 1vould lay dovm general principles to be developed subsequently in narrmrer 
fields. · Generally speaking, the fact -vras that ~Vhereas States enjoyed great 
latitude of action in exercising.their sovereignty, no State could enjoy unlimited 
sovereignty. A balance must therefore be established. At the present stage, 
the Commission's work did not have such an ambitious objective. It was important, 

I ... 



··' 1 .)U I i..u.'" '+ _) 

:IEnr;lish 
Page 6 

'1mrever, to produce a body of rules suited to the day~--to .. day issues of State 
responsibility, as had been the case with regard to the Convention on 
International Liability for Damage Caused by Space Objects. 

16. As to international liability for injurious consequences arising out of acts 
not prohibited by international lmr~ the emphasis could be either on prevention or 
on compensation. If the Commission focused exclusively on compensation, it ilould 
be giving States licence to cause harm) and that uould hardly be constructive as 
far as the development of interna.tional law· 1-ras concerned. There uas a grov<ing 
tendency among States to conclude bilateral a[Sreements 'ivhich emphasized the duty 
to avoid causints harm and included compensatory provisions only in cases vrhere 
prevention uas impossible or too costly~ that example should be followed in the 
elaboration of any ';umbrella" convention. It vras essential to establish not only 
lvhich acts uere injurious, but also at 1rhat point the harm became inadmissible, 
a matter 'ii'hich related to the internal legislation of States. \Tith regard to 
JlOllution, a State could request another State to take preventive measures and to 
corPmi t itself to provide compensation. Solutions relating to acts not prohibited 
by international lau therefore alloued for the establishment of primary obligations. 
In that context" it uas essential to avoid a misunderstanding concerning the 
notion of duty of care. It uould be 1rrong to claim that States had an absolute 
c1utjr of care. Jl!o State could offer absolute e;uarantees regarding the consequences 
of its acts in relation to such matters as the protection of diplo~atic agents. 
i\11 a State could guarantee 'i-tas that it uould do its utmost to afford such 
protection. 

17. His delee;ation believed that the Commission should, in the light of State 
practice) forflulate general principles before elaborating the draft articles, 
~rhich it should sub~it to the Sixth Committee as soon as possible. 

lG. l1r._C~~ERO_RODTIIGU~- (Brazil), recalling that the Special Rapporteur on the 
topic of State resrJOnsibility had indicated his intention of follolTing up his 
preliminary report uith a second report outlining a plan of vrork and dealing 1-rith 
the neu obligations of the State responsible for an internationally 1-rrongful act, 
considered that the second report (A/CN.4/34l~) uas not in strict conformity uith 
his anno1.mced intention. 

19. The report uas divided into tuo parts, the second of uhich, entitled "The 
first parameter: the neiT obligation of the State uhose act is internationally 
'rrongful ;, , concluded ui th the rresentation of five draft articles. Despite the 
title. only tuo of those articles dealt 1fith the first parameter and, throughout 
the te):t of the rerort, and particularly in sections B and C, references -vrere made 
to a plrrn of uorl~: for IJart t1ro of the draft articles~ yet no such plan of uork 
1ras offered and its consideration uas made difficult by the format of the report 
i ts<:.:J f. It see1aed obvious) houever, that the tasl: of the Commission in preparing 
Dart tuo uould be far easier if some basic questions uere clarified by a careful 
consideration of a nlan of ITOrk. The inadertuate structure of the otherwise 
excellent report rrlight 1-rell have contributed to the fact that the questions it 
raised lmcl not been r;iven as full a debate in the Commission as the importance of 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/36/SP. ,I; 3 
English 
Page 7 

(~1r. Calero Ro~~r.ir>;u~~ -~E2:z: iJ) 

the topic warranted) and it was perhaps fortunate in the circlllllstances that the 
DraftinG Committee had not been able to discuss the articles at the thirty-thira 
session of the Commission. 

20. He noted that the Special Rapporteur had SUt!,!:;ested that part two should begin 
-vri th a nu..mber of 'general principles' or '1preliminary rules;:? following the 
procedure adopted in part one, and that he had proposed three articles to be 
inserted in a special chapter under the heading r:general principles;:~ one of vlhich 
(article 2) would indicate the residual nature of the rules on content, forms and 
degrees of State responsibility set forth in part two of the draft

3 
while the other 

two articles (articles 1 and 3) would affirm that certain rights and obligations 
of a State would not be affected by the breach of an international obligation 
attributed to that State. 

21. Turnin~ first to the principle laid down in article 2) he said that, if a 
primary rule of international law, which created an obligation) prescribed the 
lecal consequences of a breach of that obliGation? it would be reasonable to ad~mit 
that in the case of a breach the rep,ime thus established would apply rather than 
the regime established in part two. However~ the proposed draft article 2 0 by 
affirming that the particular rer;ime of responsibility could derive from any rule 
•:whether of customary, conventional or other origin n and could be determined 
'

1explicitly or implicitly:. in that rule, went too far in acceptin,3 the pre~eminence 
of the regime established by the primary rule, thus considerably reducin~ the 
application of rart two and creating highly undesirable leGal uncertainties. 

22. In his delegation 1 s vie1·r? the legal consequences of an internationally 
wrongful act should be governed by the draft articles, unless a primary conventional 
rule explicitly established a different regime for the breach of an obli"C;ation -· 
creat-ed by that rule. He therefore agreed 1vith the formulation of article 2 
suggested by one of the members of the Commission, Mr. Alo.rich. 

2J. In connexion with articles 1 and ] 0 he noted that, according to article 1, 
the breach of an international obligation by a State did not as such, and for that 
State, affect the force of that obligation, and that article 3 provided that the 
breach of an international obligation did not in itself deprive that State of its 
rights under international lmr. Placed at the very beginning of part two~ those 
provisions might give the impression that undue attention was being paid to the 
interests of the State that had breached an oblir;ation, and he noted that one 
men1ber of the Commission had even suggested that it should be made clear in the 
corill1entary that the provisions should not be considered as constituting a 'l!agna 
Carta•: for the States committing a wrongful act. 

24. T1vo further is sues of substance were involved: firstly~ the question of 
whether the breach of an obligation invalidated that obligation~ and" secondly, to 
vrhat extent the breach of an obligation by a State affected, in general, the 
rights of that State under international law. As to the first question, there 
would seem to be no reason to doubt that the breach of an obligation did not in 
itself nullify the oblir;ation· the fulfibnent of the obligation might become 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Far;e i3 

(Nr. Calero Rodrip;ues, Brazi~J 

materially impossible, and the State to which the obligation lras due mie;ht have 
the right to terminate the leBal relationship of \vhich the obligation was a part, 
but, in principle, the obligation continued to exist after the breach. As to the 
second question, it lTOUld seem logical to say that, while a State could not be 
deprived of all its rishts under international law because it had breached an 
international obligation, i-: mie;ht be deprived of certain rights in the frameworl~ 
of the new legal relationship created by its internationally urongful act. 

25. Hhile in both instances the Special Rapporteur seemed to have taken the 
position just outlined, his draftin~ of articles 1 and 3 lTaS not sufficiently 
precise and might give rise to difficulties, and there was therefore much merit 
in the suggestion :made by !Tr. Aldrich that articles 1 and 3 should be combined 
in a sinc;le article Hhich vrould rPad: "A breach of an international obligation 
by a State affects the international rights and obligations of that State, of the 
injured State and of third States onl;r as provided in this Part". Similarly, 
his delegation also supported the proposal made by Sir Franc is Vallat, 1-rhich 
seemed to have found r;eneral acceptance in the Commission, namely that part tuo 
of the draft articles should begin with a provision statinr; that "an internationally 
i·Tronr;ful act of a State e;ives rise to oblie;ations for that State and to rights for 
other States in accordance with the provisions of this part of the present 
articles". 

26. \!hile his delegation's reservations uith regard to articles 1 to 3 related to 
the vording of its provisions, its reservations re["ardinr: articles 4 and 5,.which 
concerned the obligations of a State uhich had co:rnmitted an internationally 
11ron:=ful act, were to do with the very structure of the articles and) in the case 
of article 5, on the definition of the concepts underlyin~ the provision. In 
his nreliminary report (~/CN.4/330), the Special Rapporteur had surgested that the 
content, for~s and degrees of State responsibility could be defined in the second 
part of the draft articles on the basis of three parameters: the new obligations 
of the "guilty" State, the new obligations of the 11 injured" State and, finally, 
the position of "third" States. The question to be asked - a question to 1-rhich 

. the Commission had not provided an ans11er ·· was whether it was possible to 
examine the first parameter -vdthout knmrine; how the second and third parameters 
would be presented in the draft articles. Rir;hts and obli~ations could only be 
considered separately, and the obligations set forth in articles 4 and 5 could only 
be examined independently, if they •rere considered as "r;eneral" or "independent1

' 

oblir;ations, to be distinguished from the obligations created for the ''author" 
State by the rights of the injured States and third 8tates. Articles 4 and 5, 
in his vievr, could constitute only a very provisional enunciation of the 
oblic;ations of the author State -· so provisional, indeed, that it mir;ht be asked 
vhether it might not have been preferable for the Commission and the Sixth 
CoJYlmittee to be called upon to cormnent on the two c.l.raft articles only after the 
second and third Parameters had been defined. In any case he noted that, 
accordinr, to the Gpecial Rapporteur, the first parameter could be divided into 
three obligations, or three de~rees of the same obligation, namely, the obligation 
to stol) the breach, the oblie;ation of reparation, and the obligation to mal;:e 
restitutio in inter:rum stricto_sensu and to render satisfaction. Such obligations 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/36/SR .43 
Ene;lish 
Pae;e 9 

(Hr. Calero Rodrigues, :E)razil) 

could also be seen as tendinc; touards a belated performance of the original 
obligation or a subs~!tu~~ performance or-that-obligation. 

27. In his view, the primary aim of the rules of international law on State 
responsibility vras, as the Special Rapporteur had noted (A/CN.4/330, para. 20), 
to endeavour to 11re-establish the situation Hhich uould have prevailed if no 
breach of the international obligation had occurred", or, as ~xpressed in the 
1928 judgement of the Permanent Court of International Justice in the Chorz6w 
_Eac-t;;ory case "to >vipe out all the consequences of the illegal act 11

, andthat-­
primary aim should always be kept in mind~ particularly though not exclusively, 
in relation to international crimes, which formed the subject~matter of article 19 
of the first part of the draft articles. 

28. In that respect, he felt that article 4 ·was lacking in clarity: vhile 
paragraph 1 (c) referred to the obliGation to re-establish the situation as it 
existed before the breach, and vrhile paragraph 2 mentioned the obligation of 
financial compensation, the re-establishment of the situation as provided in 
subparagraph (c) uas presented as a follow·~up to the measures envisaged in 
subparaeraphs (a) and (b) of the same paraeraph 1, and thus seemed to be both a 
vhole and a part of a uhole. In order to re-~establish the previous situation, a 
State >·rhich had committed an internationally wrongful act was required under 
subparagraph (a) and subparagraph (b) of paragraph 1 respectively, 11to discontinue 
the act" and to "prevent continuing effects of such act11

, and also to "apply such 
remedies as are provided for in, or admitted under, its internal law", 
"subject to article 22 of part one of the present articles". 

29. For his delegation, that provision gave rise to concern on two counts. In 
the first place, it doubted the appropriateness of the reference to article 22, 
which dealt with the exhaustion of local remedies 9 that being a necessary 
condition before a breach of an international obligation ~·ras recognized, because 
if local remedies had not been exhausted the breach did not legally exist, uhereas 
part II of the draft articles dealt precisely vrith a situation in lvhich such a 
breach existed. \Tas one to understand that a State responsible for a breach had 
the richt to delay the fulfilment of its (secondary) obligation to stop that 
breach (lata sensu) until such time as new local post-breach remedies had been 
sought and exhausted? Secondly 9 the description in paragraph 1 (b) of the 
oblic;ation of the author State to "apply such remedies as are provided for in, 
or admitted under, its· internal lavr" could be questioned; it might suc;gest that, 
if no remedies existed, there was no obligation to stop the breach (lato ~~Q~~). 
Even though the additional oblisations of the author State could be enunciated 
under the second and third.parameters, it.uould seem necessary, since the Special 
Rapporteur had chosen to start part II of the draft articles with the obligations 
of the author State, to spell·out those obligations as clearly as possible, and in 
particular to specify that a State that had breached an international obli~ation 
1ras bound r.1rst and. foremost to re-establish the sit1.:.ation 'which vrould have 
prevailed if no breach had occurred. If that Has impossible for the author State, 
then ~ and only then . uas the possibility of a 11 substitute'' performance (the 
obligation to make compensation and ~rovide satisfaction to the injured State) to 
be contemplated, as stated in article 4, paragraphs 2 and 3. I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Pae;e 10 

(Nr. Calero Rodrip;ues, Bra~_g_) 

30. Uith rec;ard to paragraph 2 and the ~.uestion of the transition fr0m the 
obligation of restitutio in inter:rum to the obligation of compensation and 
satisfaction, he noted that that obli~ation 1muld exist '1to the extent that n 
is materially iMpossible for the State to act in conformity •·rith the provisions 
of paragraph 1 11

• Since paragraph 1 vras not very clear, the meaninc of parap~raph 2 
also became unclear. If a State could not, in case of a breach, apply remedies 
"provided for in, or admitted under, its internal law" in accordance with 
paragraph 1 (a), vras it to be concluded that there >ras a material impossibility 
of re-establishing the situation as it heed existed before the breach? Secondly, 
1rith respect to the content of the obligations of compensation and satisfaction, 
compensation vras referred to as the J)a:vment of a sum of money corresJ 'ondinc to 
the value uhich a fulfilment of the obligations mentioned in paragraph 1 voulc1 
bear. He 1rondered whether it should not be admitted thnt comTJensation or, as 
it 1-1as sometimes called, 11 reparation by equivalent" could take some form other 
than the }'ayment of a "sum of money11

• i~atisfaction, accordinr: to parac;raph 3, 
took the form of "an apology and of appro)Jriate guarantees against the re11etition 
of the breach11

: was it the intention of the parar,raph to limit satisfaction to 
those t1-ro forms? 

31. Having set forth in article 4 the nnorw.al 11 oblic:ations of the author State, 
the ~;pecial Rapporteur had dealt in article 5 vrith the S)Jecial case in which the 
internationally uron3ful act >ras a breach of an international obligation 
concerninc: the treatment to be accorded by a State to aliens. Accordine; to 
article 5, the State vrhich had committed that breach had an option betueen 
restj.tu_t_i.2__~,!! __ i~!-~r:rum and compensation. Ilis delegation vras uneasy about the 
position concerning the obligation of restitutio in inter,rum taken by the Special 
Tiapporteur in that provision, uhich seemed to-be-anupplication of the principle 
of proportionality. The Special Tiapporteur seemed to differ from the widely-held 
opinion expressed by Professor Dupu:r in his 1977 arbitral avmrd in the 
Topco· Calasiatic case, namely, that "!~ti tutio _i!_l_ i-l:!_t_~!_'E.l! is . • . the norrrnl 
sanction for the non-performance of contractual oblic:ations11 and that it Has 
inapplicable only to the extent that restoration of the status quo ante 1-ras 
impossible. The Special Rapporteur, uho had written in paragraph 137 of his 
second report (A/CN.4/344) that restitutio in integrum 11 is not necessarily a 
lec;al consequence of the breach" and bad--stated in the Commission that "in his vieu 
restitutio in intep;rum 1-ras not a normal conseC1uence of the breach of an 
i~ternational oblig-;tion" (A/CH.4/SR.l666), s~emed to accept the idea that, in 
addition to ~aterial impossibility; a legal impossibility could preclude 
restitutio injE_ter;r~ and said that "an obligation of the author State to effect 
a restitutio in intep,rum stricto sensu may be incompatible with its right to 
domestic jurisdictionii(A/Cli-:4/344 -:-paras. 151 and 157). 

32. Article 5, vrhich vras an application of those concepts, vrould in fact 
authorize a State to breach an international obligation for a price, the price of 
compensation, and the State, havinr, failed to perform that oblir;ation, could free 
itself from the duty of performance through the payment of a sum of money to the 
injured Gtate. Ile cited article 13 of the International Covenant on Civil and 
Political Rir,hts and said that, according to the proposed article 5, a State 

I . .. 



P/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Page ll 

(Hr. Calero RC?drigues, Braz_g_) 

would not be obliged to live up to its obli.s;ation under that provision of the 
Covenant. By conduct not in conformity uith that olJligation - for instance bv 
expelling an alien uithout due process of lmv _, the State vould breach the ' 

1 

obli~ation but •wuld at the same time free itself from it. Even if the 
re-establishment of the situation that had existed before the breach >muld not 
be at all materially impossible, the only consequence of the breach for the 
author State vould be that a sum of money would become due to the injured State. 
JIJot much l·ras required of the .State under the Covenant: the obligation to ap:Jly 
due process of laH existed only in the case of aliens lavTfully in the territory 
of the State and uhere compellinr: reasons of national security could not be 
invoked. Such beinr; the case, vras it really necessary or justified in that 
situation to give the State the benefit of the option envisaged in article 5? 
He vrould favour keeping in part II of the draft articles, as in part I, the 
essential unity of the concept of international responsibility, avoiding the 
creation of exceptions or special regimes unless it \Ias absolutely necessary to 
do so. 

33. In commenting, as members were expected to do, on the draft articles in 
part II, he had not been able to do full justice to the second report of the 
Special Rapporteur, vrhose eminent legal qualities and intellectual capacity he 
ap~reciated. He regretted that the many ideas and concepts in that report had 
not been discussed before the Commission and the Sixth Committee had embarlced 
on the actual consideration of the draft articles. 

34. Turning to the question of international liability for injurious consequences 
arising out of acts not prohibited by international law, he said that the second 
report of the Special Raprorteur on the topic (A/CN.4/346 and Add.l and 2) eras 
very well structured and 1:as an impressive demonstration of the Special Rapporteur's 
ability to handle a very difficult subject. The Special Rap110rteur had been 
particularly }Jrudent not to draw bard and fast conclusions. Neither the 
boundaries nor the inner content of the topic \rere as yet clearly defined, and 
one could only hope that a consensus on them 1rould emere;e through discussions in 
the CoiP...~-nission and in the Sixth Committee. Some scepticism existed in the 
Commission; one member had said that "it would be extremely difficult, if not 
impossible, to lay doun fundamental rules that uould be applicable to specific 
situations", another had '\:ondered uhether it vas possible to formulate a single 
set of rules", and a third had said that "he was 1villing to try to formulate a 
general regime through the progressive development of internation8l law but he 
>ras not sure hm·r the Commission could go in that direction''. His delegation took 
a position similar to that of the third member. It believed that the Special 
Rapporteur should continue to provide food_ for thought in his reports 3 1-rhich 
should present an occasion for a full debate on the general questions involved 
and on the best >ray to approach solutions. Only after that should the Commission 
try to come to c:rins uith draft articles, unless, of course, it reached the 
conclusion that no prospects existed for developinc: satisfactory provisions, in 
which case it should discontinue its uork on the subject. IIe did not believe 
that the Commission Fould necessarily reach that extreme, but the possibility 
should be kept in mind. 

I ... 



A/G.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Page 12 

(Mr. Calero Rodri~ues, Brazil) 

35. His delegation agreed vri th much of vrhat vras contained in the second report of 
the Special Rapporteur. It shared the vie1r that any solution should seek to 
establish a balance of interests. On the one hand, there uas the State in vhose 
territory the activities uere :performeo. and uhich actually had a right to carry 
out vTithin its ovm boundaries activities that vrere not prohibited by international 
lau; on the other hand, there vras the State uhich suffered the injurious 
consequences and which might claim the right not to be subjected, in its 
territory, to harm that originated in another State. Two elements vrere thus 
essential for the establishment of legal rules: activities not prohibited by 
international lavr, as cause, and damage in another State, as consequence. Ilis 
delegation found it difficult to conceive rules to be applied if one of the two 
elements vras missing; that uas vrhy it found it difficult to envisage general rules 
aimed at preventing damage. In his "cryptic" article, the Special Rapporteur 
proposed that the future draft articles should apply to activities ~iving rise 
to 11 actual or potential loss or injury to another State". The concept of 
11potential loss or injury11 seemed to him to be too extensive, since it could be 
interpreted as covering almost the uhole spectrum of activities within a State. 
As an example of the problems inherent in such a concept, he asked 1-rhether a 
State should have the ric;ht to interfere 1rith the construction of nuclear power 
plants in another State because they ~rere too near to its borders? Hovr near? 
Hhat if a State uas so snall that any location uould be too near its borders with 
another State? 

36. IIis delegation understood the concern of the Snecial Rapporteur that 
obligations of reparation should not take the place of obligations of prevention; 
nor did it question the duty of care. Hmrever, it did not yet see how that duty 
of care or the obligations of prevention could be developed into rules of a general 
nature such as those contemplated under the topic. Furthermore, even if all 
possible care had been taken, drunage could still be inflicted. His delegation 
therefore believed that devising rules to be applied vrhen drur.age occurred should 
be the main concern. On that basis, a sinrle regine could be established coveriw,~ 
nlso hro additional situations uhich the Special Tiapporteur, at least for the 
time being, considered to be special cases: unforeseen accidents, and the 
existence of circumstances precluding l·rronr;fulness. As a complement to that regime, 
some concrete rules, as opposed to general rules, for the duty of care might also 
be contemplated. 

37. The Special Rapporteur seemed to be convinced that a good body of doctrine, 
and Rtates themselves, •rere so ~nistrustful of the concept .of strict liability that 
it could not be taken as a basis. IIe apparently believed that his ovm approach, 
in I'Thich prid~ 9f pl?.ce uas given to preventive rul~s, 'i'!01Jld allmr for. a better 
solution and that, as he put it, "the monster of strict liability should be 
domes:ticated 11

• · IIoyever, his delegation doub.ted mo:r:-e and more the possibility of 
proo.ucinr; ari adequate set of rules and 'lfondered l·rhether it' vrould not be better' 
instead of domesticnting the monster, to grasp the buil by the horns. 'Tith proper 
qualifications·, ircludinc; the establishment of. thresholds of harm, the concept 
of strict liability could perhaps be accepted as a reasonable foundation for the 
uork on the topic. 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Pa~e 13 

(I.1r. Calero Rodrir,ues, Brazil) 

38. As stated in the Commission's report (A/36/10, para. 197), "the search for 
general principles should be pursued, with a willinGness to venture cautiously 
into the realm of progressive development, but also i·rith a consciousness that 
different kinds of situation may be found to require different treatment". His 
delegation agreed ·with that proposition and was confident that the Special 
Rapporteur would continue his in-depth exploration of the topic until satisfactory 
answers were found. 

39. Mr. RIOS (Chile) said that the progress achieved by the Commission on some 
of the topics on its agenda was particularly welcome in vie~>r of the fact that 
the term of office of its members was about to expire; it would be helpful if 
those members of the Commission to whom specific tasks had been entrusted could 
continue their work, so as to facilitate the elaboration of the draft articles 
w·ith which they ~>rere dealing. 

40. In the view of his delegation, the draft articles produced under the topic 
of succession of States in respect of matters other than treaties regulated a 
large nQmber of very complex situations and provided equitable, realistic and 
balanced solutions. The draft articles on succession of States in respect of 
State property, archives and debts were an essential complement to the Convention 
on Succession of States in respect of Treaties and, subject to the safeguard 
clause in article 5, they vrould, if adopted in the form of a convention, complete 
the codification of the most important questions relatin~ to succession of States. 
In vieu of the diversity of cases of State succession covered by the draft 
articles, his delegation could not agree that, since the few colonies still 
remaining vmuld shortly disappear, any convention adopted on the basis of the 
draft articles ;-rould? like the Convention on Succession of States in respect of 
Treaties, seldom need to be applied in practice. Uhile his delegation regretted 
that no such instruments had existed when decolonization was at its height, 
it believed that in the future, even when all dependent States had attained their 
independence, the conventions would provide solutions to the problems raised by 
the other cases of State succession dealt with in the draft articles. His 
delegation therefore endorsed the Commission's recommendation that an international 
conference of plenipotentiaries should be convened to adopt a convention based on 
the draft articles, and it was confident that, once the necessary modifications 
had been made, the convention vrould command general acceptance. It reserved the 
right to make more detailed observations on the draft articles at such a 
conference, after giving them the close study they demanded, and expressed its 
thanks to the representative of Iraq, whose statement on the subject ~>rould 
greatly facilitate that study. 

41. Hhile his delegation approved of the fact that the draft articles on treaties 
concluded betvreen States and international organizations or between t1m or more 
international organizations had been given the same structure as the Vienna 
Convention on the Law of Treaties, to which it was a vital corollary, it was 
nevertheless important that they should retain their own individual character so 
as to have legal force independently of the Convention. It therefore agreed with 
the decision not to make reference to the Vienna Convention even in the case of 

I ... 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Page 14 

(Mr. Rios, Qhilt:) 

articles modelled on the prov1s1ons of that Convention. The compromise solution 
1-rhich had been arrived at in article 6" concerninr; the capacity of international 
orc;anizations to conclude treaties, seemed fair and his delegation vras sure that 
it would be universally accepted. It vrelcomed the fact that article 26 
reproduced the corresponding provision of the Vienna Convention, since the 
principle pact~ !3~~-t_s~rvand_~- vras one of the buhrarks of the certainty of 
international la1r. In view of the importance of the question of treaties 
concluded betueen States and international orr;e.nizations or betueen such 
organizations, his deleeation considered that it should be given priority and 
hoped that the Corrunission would be able to complete the second readinc: of the 
draft articles on the subject at its 1982 session. 

42. On the question of State responsibility, his Government believed that the 
articles thus far submitted to Governments for comment 1rere a decisive 
contribution to the proe;ressive development and codification of international lavr. 
The five articles on content, forms and dee;rees of international responsibility 
proposed by the Special Rapporteur at the 1981 session oid not call for any 
specific comments. Despite the importance 1-rhich his Government also attached 
to international li~bility for injurious consequences arising out of acts not 
prohi1Jitec1 by international lau, it uas of the vievr that it would. be better for 
the Commission to COPlplete its wart on the draft articles on responsibility 
incurred as a result of 11ronc;ful acts before proceedinc: to draft any articles 
on liability for non--urongful acts, 1 .. 1hich uould necessarily be complementary in 
nature. 

l13. Turning to the q_uestion of jurisdictional iw.munities of States anc1 their 
property, he said that his delec:ation vished to reaffirm its adherence to the 
principle that every State -vras exempt from the domestic jurisdiction of another 
State. In the case of public acts of a State performed in exercise of its 
sovereic:nty, that principle should be applied uithout qualification. nouever, 
in thP case of cor.rrnercial activities or acts j_':l~_r;estionis generally, there might 
be e;~ceptions to tlmt principle, in accordance vrith the s;enerally accepted rules 
of contemporary international lav. By and large, his delegation endorsed the 
observations made on the subject by the Chairman of the Cowmission -vrhen 
introducinG the Cow.mission' s report. 

44. His delec:ation hoped that the Commission vrould continue its consideration of 
the question of the status of the di~lomatic courier and the diplomatic ba~ not 
accor1})anied by diplomatic courier co.nd would give it the priority assigned. to it 
by the General Asse!'lbly. 

45. He 1-relcomed the co-operation betHeen the Commission and reP:;ional bodies 
such as the European Committee on Legal Co--operation, the Inter-American 
Juridical Com.rnittee, the Asian--African Legal Consultative C:ommittee and the Arab 
Cmilllis~;ion for International Lau, 1rhich 1-ras bound to give the Commission a 
better idea of the various lerr,al svsteTYis throuc;hout the uorld. 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.43 
English 
Page 15 

(~'fr. Rios. Chile) 

46. '·Jhile sharing the concern expressed -by some delecations at the length of 
time taken by the Commission in producinz its draft articles~ his dele~ation 
understood that the amount of 'i·rork entrusted to the Commission by the General 
Assembly, and its conscientious approach to that vrork, precluded its proceeding at 
e;reater speed. 

47. lastly, his delegation uished to stress the importance of the International 
Law Geminar usually held during the Cowmission's sessions and to thank the 
lecturers who had participated in the 1981 session, including I1r. Badr and 
Hr. Ospina. 




